
PRELIMINARY MINUTES 
 

VILLAGE OF LUDLOW 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, March 7, 2023 

 
6:00 PM  

 
HOWARD BARTON, JR. CONFERENCE ROOM 

 
 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:   
David Rose, Chairman Earl Washburn,   Bob Brandt   
 
STAFF:   
Scott Murphy Joe Gaudiana 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 
Paul Alcorn   
 

 
1. Call To Order 
 

A. David Rose called the regular meeting of the Village Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
 
2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda 
 

A. Scott Murphy advised that the minutes for March 2, 2023  are not available. 
 
 

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meetings 
 

A. David Rose advised the minutes to be approved are from the regular meeting of February 7, 2023, 
Special Joint Committee Meeting of February 21, 2023 and Special Joint Committee Meeting of 
February 27, 2023 . 

B. MOTION by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve minutes from the 
regular meeting of February 7, 2023, Special Joint Committee Meeting of February 21, 2023 
and Special Joint Committee Meeting of February 27, as submitted.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 

4. Comments from Citizens 
 

A. Noise 
i. Paul Alcorn said that at the last meeting, there was discussion regarding a noise ordinance, 

but noticed that it is not on the agenda tonight.  The discussion was mostly about Eight 0 
Brew, but also the property that was once the Pettigrew Inn and now is used to house Okemo 
employees. There were late night parties and Okemo has taken care of that, but there will be 
new tenants coming in soon.  He would suggest an ordinance that says after a certain time 
parties in the street are not allowed. 

ii. David Rose said they should call the police in such cases. 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  March 7, 2023 
Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 2 of 6 
 
 

iii. Scott Murphy said the procedure is to call the police. 
iv. David Rose said that we were talking about entertainment. 
v. Scott Murphy said they should call the police.  One night we sent the police down to the old 

Pettigrew Inn twice.  The police handle street parties. 
vi. Paul Alcorn said that is a poor use of police time.  We need something that Okemo can show 

the tenants to refer to with an expected time after which parties stop. 
vii. David Rose said even with an ordinance, if there are still parties, you would still have to call 

the police.  He added that the board can look into an ordinance, but they would still have to 
call the police to enforce it. 

viii. Scott Murphy said if there is a 10:00 p.m. curfew for a noise ordinance and people are 
making noise, you still would call the police. 

ix. Paul Alcorn said he wants the Village to set a specific time. 
 

B. 21 Prospect Street 
i. Paul Alcorn said that the Planning Commission is working on a definition for different types 

of properties such as hotel and dorms.  They were told by someone not to bring changes to 
the Trustees until 2024. He said that changes in town are happening quickly.  The only 
category now is Inn, but this is very different from an Inn.  We need more useful categories. 

ii. David Rose said that the Planning Commission has not come to this board with this and does 
not recall the Trustees saying we wouldn’t look at it until 2024. 

iii. Scott Murphy said that the Planning Commission is working on definitions and 21 Prospect 
Street is between definitions, hotel, and rooming house.  But, he has not heard about anyone 
telling the Planning Commission to not make changes until 2024. 

iv. Paul Alcorn said if a change of use is involved, the people have to go to the DRB and the 
DRB can impose conditions.  If there is no change of use, the people don’t have to go to the 
DRB and there are no conditions..  The character of the neighborhood has changed.  He said 
there is trash in the streets from an overflowing dumpster. 

v. David Rose said there is a trash ordinance. 
vi. Paul Alcorn said they moved the dumpster, but it is still overflowing with trash. 

vii. David Rose said if that is the case, call town hall .  We do have an ordinance for that. 
viii. Paul Alcorn said he wants those buildings to fit into the community and the property is not 

managed to maintain the character of the neighborhood. 
ix. David Rose said it is good to hear these concerns as we can’t address an issue if we don’t 

know about it. 
x. Paul Alcorn said the Water Commission approved water for the 3lots next to 21 Prospect.  

How can that happen. 
xi. David Rose said the Village Residential has a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet.  The 

subdivision has not gone to the DRB. 
xii. Paul Alcorn asked how they could get a permit for water and sewer before the DRB hearing. 

xiii. David Rose explained that in order to go to the DRB,  they must first have the water/sewer 
allocation. If the subdivision falls through, they can come back here removed.. 

 
 
5. Sewer Allocation Request  
 

A. 926 Okemo Ridge Road – William & Lizabeth Hollis, Trustees 
i. Scott Murphy advised that this is an application to add 2 bedrooms to their currently existing 

5 bedrooms. The increased allocation is 2 x  $780.00 = $1,560.00 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  March 7, 2023 
Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 3 of 6 
 
 

ii. MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by Earl Washburn to approve the request from 
Parker Reed to add allocation for one additional bedroom at $780.00.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
 

B. Property Adjacent to 21 Prospect Street – Robert Sullivan. -  
i. Scott Murphy advised that this is a request for a permit to connect to the water service for three 

lots on his property.  This property is being subdivided into 3 lots from the current one lot.  He 
intends to build three, 3-bedroom properties on these lots in the future.  The hook-on fee is 
$6,600.00 (3 x $2,200.00.) The allocation fee is $$4,914.00 ($546.00 x 9.) 

ii. Bob Brandt asked when this would be coming up to the DRB. 
iii. David Rose said a month or two..   
iv. MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by Earl Washburn to approve the request to for 

a permit to connect to the water service for 3 lots to build three, 3-bedroom homes.  
Motion passed unanimously 

 
C. Sam’s Steakhouse – 91 VT. Route 103S – Troy Caruso 

i. Scott Murphy said this is an application to decrease  the previously allocation from 200 to 140 
seats, leaving him with a net increase of 15 seats. Total allocation fee is $2,047.50 (which has 
already been paid.) 

ii. MOTION by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the request to 
decrease the seating from 200 to 140 seats as per the administrative approval.  Motion 
passed unanimously 

 
D. Westwood Homes off Ghia Farm Road - Barbara Ghia 

i. Request to relinquish allocation for six (6) four bedroom allocation vacant lots. 
ii. Scott Murphy said these lots were never hooked on to the system.  She has a potential 

buyer who doesn’t need the allocation. 
iii. David Rose said that one the allocations are gone, they are gone and if wanted in the 

future, the owner will have to come back to this board with a request. 
iv. Scott Murphy said that he has explained it to her.. 
v. MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by Earl Washburn  to approve the request to 

relinquish allocation for six (6) four bedroom vacant lots.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
6. RHR Smith Auditor John Boulay to Review FY2022 Village Audit 
 

A. Scott Murphy said that the auditor is out sick again, but that the audit is here, including a short 
version.  He referred to page 11 of the audit and noted Unassigned Funds of $110,768 and page 
12 discussed the factors.  The Village Unassigned funds has fallen below the level to sustain 
operations for a period less than 3 months. That would be about $125,000. 

B. David Rose suggested possibly because of projects not done or a good winter. 
C. Scott Murphy quoted from the Management Letter 

 “…we noted no transactions of the Village of Ludlow, Vermont for the above mentioned 
year end audit, for which there was a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or deviation 
from best practice.” 

D. David Rose said it is a clean audit.  He asked if there is one more year left on the contract with 
this auditor. 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  March 7, 2023 
Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 4 of 6 
 
 

E. Scott Murphy said yes. This year the town audit went smoothly, but the Village did not.  It was 
all done remotely and I have a problem with that.  I expected them to come and actually look at 
the files. 

F. David Rose said they start in June and Scott Murphy will sign off on the date.  He said that he 
has already filled out the complaint for the Village. 

 
7. Access Road Stormwater Improvements 
 

A. Scott Murphy said that they haven’t started the application yet, they are due in April.  They will 
apply for two;  one for the Village and one for the Town and both for that road.  He said they 
have a quote from Adams for $80,000.  The other is for $100,000 and wouldn’t include cross 
cutting or flowable fill. 

B. David Rose said we wanted the less expensive version and to work on that RFP. 
C. Scott Murphy said that Ron Tarbell is concerned that we will have settling with the cheaper 

version. 
D. David Rose said if we get the drainage out to bid earlier, we can pave later. 
E. Bob Brandt said it is never good to compact until one freeze-soft cycle. 
F. Scott Murphy said he will put out the RFP with cross cuts and a bid alternate with the other as 

add-ons. 
G. David Rose said he is okay with that and we can decide once we see the bids. 
H. Scott Murphy said he thinks he can get it out this week. 

 
 
8.     Other Business 

 
A. Snow Pick-Up 

i. David Rose noted that the town had picked up last night.  
ii. Scott Murphy said they hired trucks. 

B. David Rose said that Scott Murphy is moving on from Ludlow and has been here 5 years.  We 
appreciate all that he has done for Ludlow and wish him well in his next endeavor.  Thank you,  

 
 
9.     Department Head Report 

 
A. David Rose said the report from Joe Gaudiana was very helpful 
B. Pond Street Pump Station 

i. David Rose noted that the report said that the pump is still in Rutland being fixed.  He 
asked Joe Gaudiana to keep contacting the vendor to get it repaired sooner than later.  If the 
other pump goes out, we will have a problem. 

C. Joe Gaudiana said everything at the waste water plant is running well. 
 

D. Catch Basins 
i. Earl Washburn asked about catch basins (storm drains) and said that some are low in the 

Village. 
ii. Joe Gaudiana said that he has 6 on his list and one is on Pleasant Street and Elm, by the 

Church. 
iii. David Rose said there is one at the corner of Pleasant Street and Andover Street that needs 

work. 
iv. Joe Gaudiana said there are a couple on Andover Street. 

 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  March 7, 2023 
Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 5 of 6 
 
 

E. Drainage from Roof on High School 
i. Bob Brandt asked about this 

ii. Joe Gaudiana said that there is low flow in the summer and people are not here.  They need 
more flow through the plant in the  summer.  He said that the high school connection is in a 
room that has been bricked up and Ron Tarbell doesn’t want to do it.  He prefers to leave it 
connected. 

iii. Scott Murphy said the RFP for the sewer line repair from Main Street to the school, would 
go out this week. 

iv. Bob Brandt commended the water/waste water staff on keeping the hydrants clear of snow. 
v. Joe Gaudiana said that currently all the drains behind the high school go to the wetlands. 

 
 
10. Municipal Manager Updates 
 

A. Vail Bridge Sewer Line Project Update 
i. Scott Murphy said that we received the design for a rock wear from A&E and sent it to the 

State River Engineering for review.  The RFP will go out as soon as we get the permit. 
ii. Scott Murphy said no change and no court date has been set. 

 
B. High School Sewer Line Project 

i. See Department Head Report 
 

C. Bowker Court 
i. Scott Murphy said no change and no court date has been set.  He said that the owner is still 

putting up roadblocks to the process.  He said that he expects  the court date will be set 
soon. 

 
D. Pond Street Pump Station Motor 

i. See Department Head Report 
 
 

11. Next Meeting – Annual Village Meeting 
 

A. Next Regular Meeting – April 4, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
B. Scott Murphy said the Annual Village Meeting – March 28th at  
C. Informational Meeting via ZOOM – March 27th at 6:00 p.m. 

  
 
12. Sign Warrant Orders 
 

A. Warrant orders have been signed.  
 

 
13. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues 
 

A. David Rose said that an Executive Session is needed. 
B. MOTION by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt to enter into Executive 

Session.  Motion passed unanimously. 
C. Board entered into Executive Session at 6:35  p.m. 
D. Board exited Executive Session at 6:43 p.m.. 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  March 7, 2023 
Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 6 of 6 
 
 

.  
 
14. Adjourn 
 

A. MOTION to adjourn by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt.   Motion passed 
unanimously. 

B. Meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m.   
   
           
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lisha Klaiber 
 
             
             
David Rose, Chairman of Trustees   Earl Washburn, Vice Chair 
 
 
        
Bob Brandt, Clerk 
 


